
 

 
 

        
Town Hall – 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford – Lower Level 

                    Tuesday, October 15, 2019 – 6:00 PM  
 
 
TENTATIVE 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
General 
             Designation of Pittsford as an Autism Friendly Community 
 
Presentation 
              Supervisor’s Proposed Town Budget for 2020 
 
Minutes 
             Public Comment 
             Approval of Minutes of Meeting October 1, 2019 
 
Legal Matters 

Public Comment 
Town/RIT Agreement for Energy Efficient Assessment of Town Buildings 
 

Financial Matters 
Public Comment 
Surplus 
Transfers 
Vouchers 
 

Personnel Matters 
Public Comment 
Hiring Resolution 
Training 

 
Other Business 
 
Public Comment 
 
Adjournment 

SUPERVISOR 
William A. Smith, Jr. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Kate Bohne Munzinger, Deputy 

Supervisor 
Kevin Beckford 

Matthew J. O’Connor 
Stephanie Townsend 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA 



MEMORANDUM 

To: Town Board 

From: Kate Munzinger, Deputy Supervisor 

Date: October 11, 2019 

Regarding: Autism Friendly Community 
 
 

For Meeting On: October 15, 2019 
 
 
I have been working with the Autism Council of Rochester to obtain the training for our staff 
and to satisfy the other requirements necessary to quality Pittsford as an Autism Friendly 
Community.  
  
The Autism Friendly designation was established for municipalities that are willing to increase 
awareness and support for children, young adults and families in the community living with 
Autism Spectrum Disorder, the fastest growing developmental disability in the world today. 
Right now, there are more than 3.5 million Americans living with autism. 
 
I am proposing a proclamation of the Town Board to affirm the Town’s commitment to working 
with the Autism Council of Rochester to better serve our residents living with autism.  
 
Attached for Board consideration and approval is an agreement with the Autism Council of 
Rochester for the training they have provided and will provide annually.  
 
    
 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT with TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

Annual Autism Refresher Training  

Autism Friendly & Inclusive Community Designation 

October 4, 2019 

 

 

The Autism Council of Rochester, Inc. has provided Specialized Autism Training to the Town of 

Pittsford staff (Pittsford Recreation, Town Library, and General Town Staff) on Thursday, 

October 3, 2019.  The agency will provide annual refresher training to the Town of Pittsford as 

required for the Autism Friendly & Inclusive Community Designation  

This agreement outlines the required actions by The Town of Pittsford, and The Autism Council 

of Rochester, Inc.  

Annually Autism Training - The Town of Pittsford will contact (by email or phone) The Autism 

Council of Rochester to schedule the annual Autism Friendly & Inclusive Community 

Designation Training. Town will provide training site location and also access to the technology 

required for the training.  

Training Rate - The rate of training will be provided by agency (The Autism Council of 

Rochester, Inc.) at the rate of $150 per hour. Invoice or Purchase Order will be provided 

immediately after the training is conducted.   

Cancellation Policy:  The Memorandum of Agreement can be cancelled at any time by either 

party, or within 30-days of confirmed scheduled training. If the training is scheduled less than 

30-days before the confirmed scheduled training, a fee of 50% will be billed.  

Your signature below represents your full agreement to perform the duties as outlined to obtain 

the annual Autism Refresher Training. 

 

Please sign: 

Town of Pittsford Supervisor or              Autism Council of Rochester, Inc.  
Designee 
 

__________________________________   _____________________________ 



2020 Pittsford Town Budget
Bill Smith | Pittsford Town Supervisor

 Lower Taxes

 Strong Neighborhoods

 Continual Improvement



2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

Highlights
•1.5% cut in the Town Property Tax Rate – 8.1% Tax Cut over the past 2 years
•1.0% decrease in the overall general tax levy
•Compliant with NYS Property Tax Cap
•Maintains increased funding for residential road repaving program
•Improvements to our Pittsford Community Library
•Increased support for Pittsford Volunteer Ambulance
•Increased funding for Pittsford Youth Services 
•A new kayak launch on the canal, handicapped accessible and easier access 
for seniors
•Support for Elderberry Express
•Our continuing environmental initiatives that save taxpayers money while 
protecting our natural resources 
•Environmental upgrades to King’s Bend Park
•More recreation programs, including additional concerts. 



2018 Pittsford Town Budget

Lower
Taxes

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



2019 Tax Rate: $3.205060

2020 Tax Rate: $3.155957

1.5% decrease

Tax Rate & Tax Levy Decrease

2019 Tax Levy: $10,264,581

2020 Tax Levy: $10,162,244

1.0% decrease

Tax Rate Tax Levy

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



Town Tax Rate Comparison

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



Tax Rates Lower Than Pittsford

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

Pittsford: $3.16

Parma - $2.68

- No Leaf pick-up
- Brush pick-up 2x per year

Penfield - $2.78

- No leaf pick-up
- No brush pick-up

Mendon - $2.67

- No Leaf pick-up
- Brush pick-up 2x per year
- No recreation department

Perinton - $2.15

- $1.8m revenue from landfill
- School Library District 
- Leaf pick-up every 4-6 weeks

Henrietta - $1.40

- Large commercial tax base
- No brush pick-up
- No leaf pick-up

Riga - $0.00

- $2m revenue from landfill
- No Leaf pick-up
- Brush pick-up 2x per year



Town Taxes: less than 9¢ of every $1 paid in Property Taxes 

Other Taxing Jurisdictions
91¢

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

Town
9¢



Strong 
Neighborhoods

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



• Maintains the 2019 
increase of $337,000 to 
road repair budget

• Additional traffic safety 
devices 

• LED Street Light Conversion 

Highway Department: Maintains Increased Funding

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



Active Transportation Plan Update
Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

Continual Improvement:
Supporting

Youth/Senior Services & 
Pittsford Community Library 

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



• $54,671 allocated to Pittsford Youth 
Services Counseling plus an additional 
$3,000 for administration expenses. 
Totaling $57,671

• Budget honors Town’s commitment to 
quality of life for seniors

• Funds will support:
• Tuesday Lunch Program
• Nutrition Program
• More Recreational Activities
• Elderberry Express 

Maintains Funding for Pittsford Youth Services 
and Senior Services

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

and Senior Services



Improvements to our Library 

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

• Painted the 1st floor, adding a few bright, fun 
accent colors in the children’s room, and will 
continue to replace carpeting on the 2nd floor.

• $20,000 for furniture upgrades 
• Increased staff hours  
• New database: Mango Languages, which gives 

Pittsford residents with a library card access to 
courses on learning over 70 languages as well as 
20 ESL courses. 

• Updates in the Teen Place and access to Kanopy, 
a movie streaming app, for Pittsford residents 
with a library card.



Active Transportation Plan Update
Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor

The Process 
• 10/15- Supervisor Presents his 2020 Budget Priorities 

• 10/30- Budget filed by this date with the Town Clerk.  On the day 
filed, budget will be posted on the Town website and hard copies 
will be made available. 

• 11/4- Town Board to set Public Hearing

• 11/19- Public Hearing on the 2020 Budget 

2020 Pittsford Town Budget

Presented by Bill Smith, Pittsford Town Supervisor



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

1 
 

DRAFT 
TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TOWN BOARD 
OCTOBER 1, 2019 

 
 
Proceedings of a regular meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, October 1, 2019 at 6:00 P.M. 
local time in Pittsford Town Hall.   
 
PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilpersons Kevin Beckford, Katherine B. 

Munzinger, Matthew J. O’Connor and Stephanie Townsend. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members:  Paul Schenkel, Commissioner of Public Works; Robert Koegel, Town 

Attorney; Linda Dillon, Town Clerk; Suzanne Reddick, Assistant to Supervisor; and 
Shelley O’Brien, Communications Director. 

 
ATTENDANCE: There were approximately eighty (80) members of the public in attendance.   There were 

also four (4) additional staff members present and an interpreter.  The room reached 
capacity (95) and some people were unable to enter. 

 
 
Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:10 P.M., inviting Deputy Supervisor Munzinger to 
lead in the Pledge to the Flag.  The Town Clerk noted all members present. 
 
 
SUPERVISOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1) Supervisor Smith announced and welcomed the public to attend the opening of the Town of Pittsford Dog 
Park on Tuesday, October 8 at 3:30 p.m. on East Street, adjacent to the Habecker Baseball Fields.  The 
park will be a part of the Monroe County Dog Park system.  Registration can be done through the Monroe 
County Parks Department and can also be done on October 8 at the Dog Park from 3:00 – 7:00 P.M. 
 

2) Supervisor Saturday will be this Saturday, October 5 at 9AM at the Pittsford Community Library.  Anyone 
wishing to meet, ask questions, offer comments or discuss any matter with the Supervisor regarding the 
Town are welcome to attend.   

 
 
PRESENTATION – NATURE PARK AND PRESERVE BY SUE STEELE, LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECT 
Sue Steele, Landscape Architect for the Town’s Nature Park and Preserve project, made a presentation to the 
Board, describing the plans for the 15 acre park along the Erie Canal in Pittsford, following the receipt of a grant 
award from New York State.  The presentation reviewed the following items:  Project Overview, Master Plan, Trail 
Alignment and Key Features, Historic Barn reconstruction plans and a schedule to complete the project. 
 
Sue Steele noted that adding an elevated trail to plans for the project would require additional funding, but that 
grant money may be available for this purpose. 
 
MINUTES 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
A resident whose comments were included in the draft minutes requested an amendment to her comments.  
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

2 
 

AMENDMENTS TO SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 MINUTES APPROVED 
At the request of the resident who requested the revision, Supervisor Smith moved to amend the minutes 
accordingly.  This was seconded by Councilman Beckford.  The board voted as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, 
Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
Thereafter, Councilman O’Connor requested an amendment, under the section entitled “Public Hearing on Local 
Law No. 3 of 2019”.  The Town Clerk read the proposed amendment, which was an addition to the comment 
offered by Councilman O’Connor.  The amendment would be added to the last sentence in paragraph 2 under 
Public Hearing on Local Law No. 3.  Councilman O’Connor made a motion to amend the Minutes as stated, 
seconded by Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, 
O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Amendment was approved and carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the September 17, 2019 Minutes be amended as follows: 
The last sentence in Paragraph 2, under Public Hearing on Local Law No. 3 of 2019, read as follows: 
“Councilman O’Connor and Deputy Supervisor Munzinger confirmed that they are in agreement with the proposed 
Resolution, though Councilman O’Connor did point out that the local law does not address the real underlying root 
issue, deer overpopulation that cannot be solved with signage and enforcement of firearm discharge prohibitions.  
He challenged future Boards to look to the Cornell College of Agriculture and Life Sciences for solutions based on 
research on the Ithaca campus, which could involve periodic controlled hunts and use of contraception to thin the 
herd.” 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 MINUTES APPROVED AS AMENDED 
Thereafter, a Resolution to approve the Meeting Minutes of the September 17, 2019 meeting as amended was 
offered by Councilman O’Connor, seconded by Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  
Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Meeting Minutes of the September 17, 2019 Town Board meeting is approved as amended. 
 
 
ADOPTION OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 
Supervisor Smith noted that that the Town had completed, at its last meeting, the second of two successive public 
hearings on the Comprehensive Plan (on September 3 and September 17), which followed more than 4 years of 
open public comment on the process and the plan, including three public workshops promoted in all media other 
than television and radio, including direct mailings to every household in Pittsford for each meeting.  He noted that 
the Board may now consider adopting the Plan, beginning by considering amendments proposed by Board 
members.  All such amendments had been published on the Town website the previous week. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1) Michelle Crane stated that there is plenty of housing stock available for income levels between $45,000-
$90,000 and therefore disapproves of Councilmen Beckford’s proposed amendment.  However, she 
supports the amendments related to housing options for residents age 55 and older. 

2) Ginger Sacco – spoke against the idea of multiple-dwelling units for reasons including noise levels, 
parking (more possibility of damage to vehicles), pet limitations, handicap accessibility and quality of 
housing. 

3) Kendra Evans – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendment, to make it possible for young 
families to live in Pittsford.   

4) Mary Moore – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendment, favoring housing incentives for 
those who currently cannot afford to live in Pittsford.   

5) Susan Gould – noted a correction (typo) that is needed on Page 17 with reference to Future Land Use 
Planning and also commented that she was in favor of exploring more affordable housing. 

6) Hau Jin – spoke in support of the Comprehensive Plan’s provision for broader housing options for seniors 
and the proposed amendments supporting that provision.  She noted that Pittsford is very diverse 
community 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

3 
 

7) Patricia Fazio – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendment.  As a single Mom living in 
Pittsford, she hopes her son can move back after college  

8) Elizabeth Webb – stated support for Councilman Beckford’s amendment.  She added that although she 
lives in the Highlands of Pittsford, it is not affordable for many, and therefore providing for more affordable 
housing for seniors is desirable. 

9) Mark Harrington – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendments, impressed with the 
community’s political involvement. 

10) Dani Polito – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendment.  As a two-time immigrant, she felt 
that we should not restrict efforts for broader affordability of housing to those 55 and older.   

11) Sandra Corsetti – a longtime resident (since 1986) of Pittsford, spoke, noting that she lives in a very 
affordable neighborhood that it is very diverse and inclusive, having even a group home in her 
neighborhood.  She knows that there is a larger amount of affordable housing available here in Pittsford 
than some of the proposed amendments suggest. 

12) Brenda Myers – concurred with the previous comment, noting that there is plenty of very affordable 
housing for young families available here in Pittsford. 

13) Michael Simpson – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendment, applauding affordable 
housing efforts for seniors, and encouraging development on the other end of the age spectrum. 

14) Laura-Jean Diekmann – questioned the validity of Councilman Beckford’s amendment. 
15) Alaina Malley – a resident and Nursing Home administrator, spoke regarding the 55 and older 

communities, noting that they are not necessarily successful, as many would like to stay in their own 
home.  She encouraged efforts to help seniors to stay in their own home. 

16) Barbara Jablonski – a 31 year resident, expressed her gratitude for the Community Survey and for the 
Town Board listening to, and responding to, the survey results, which indicated a desire to address 
affordable housing for seniors and recreational needs along the canal for seniors and children.  She 
asked that the Town Board honor the opinions of residents as expressed in the Community Survey 
opinions, and not approve amendments to the comprehensive Plan based on personal agendas. 

17) Paul Knipper – a 43 year resident, spoke, supporting affordable housing regardless of age.  He is in 
support of limiting lot sizes, for more homes and direct incentives to residents. 

18) Jin Lian – a 7 year resident, spoke, supporting the community and indicating her happiness with the 
Pittsford community, with its welcoming nature and its diversity.  She stated that she is happy living here 
in Pittsford. 

19) Jessie Keating – spoke in support of Councilman Beckford’s amendments and requested that no vote be 
taken, giving additional opportunity for comments. 

20) Jeff Luellen – a 50+ year resident, spoke, against Councilman Beckford’s amendments, as unnecessary 
and damaging, and contrary to the wishes of the community. 

 
 
ADOPTION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Councilman Beckford asked the Town Attorney if another public hearing could be opened.  The Town Attorney 
responded that it is possible, subject to the same procedure used for the two previous public hearings, with notice 
published in a newspaper of record at least five days prior to the next hearing. 
  
Thereafter, Councilman Beckford moved to set another public hearing the Public Hearing.  There was no second 
to this motion, and the motion failed.   
 
Councilwoman Townsend then moved to delay a vote on the Comprehensive Plan, as this could give time for 
more review and public comment.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Beckford and voted on by members 
as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford and Townsend.  Nays:  Munzinger, O’Connor and Smith.  The motion failed. 
 
Supervisor Smith reviewed the procedure in considering the proposed Amendments.  For purposes of avoiding 
confusion, they would be considered in the same format as they were publicly published, considering in turn each 
set of amendments proposed by Board members. 
 
The first set of amendments for consideration were entitled Part A (Supervisor Smith’s Proposed Amendments).  
Councilwoman Townsend asked about references in the amendment to particular types of zoning districts for 
residents of 55 and older; specifically, would the 55-plus requirement apply just to the original purchaser of a 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

4 
 

property under such zoning or to subsequent purchasers as well.  Supervisor Smith confirmed that the age 
provision would apply to all subsequent purchasers as well.   
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE AMENDMENTS 
AMENDMENTS PART A  
Following discussion and Supervisor Smith’s review of his proposed amendments, a motion was made by 
Supervisor Smith, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, to approve Part A of the proposed amendments to 
the Comprehensive Plan, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and 
Smith.  Nays:  Beckford. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Part A of the proposed Amendments by Supervisor Smith be approved as follows:   
 

Part A (Supervisor Smith’s Amendments) 
 
 1.  Update, p. 34, under “Policies,” third bullet, add to the end of the bullet: “including housing options 
specifically suited for residents of age 55 and older.” 
 
 2.  Update, p. 36, change point 15 to read as follows:  “Consider providing incentives to developers to 
develop more affordable housing in the Town of Pittsford for residents aged 55 and older.” 
 
 3.  Update, following p. 36, add additional page to read as follows: 
 
Aging-in-Place  
 
The policy recommendations for residential development in this Comprehensive Plan (p. 34) contemplate 
diversification of housing stock to accommodate shifting preferences. Many Pittsford residents have expressed 
interest in more housing options suited specifically for people in their retirement years, and at a broader range of 
price points than may be available currently.  
The Plan’s recommended actions regarding residential development specifically include (p.36) considering 
incentives for developers to provide more housing options for residents of age 55 and older at lower cost than 
typically available in Pittsford.  
New York Law makes specific provision for action by towns along these lines. In accordance with it, the following 
actions are recommended.  
 
1. Consider creating a retirement community zoning district for occupancy by people 55 years old and older.  
 
2. Consider creating a senior citizen residence district “floating zone” specifically for multi-family dwellings 
arranged as individual units for people 55 and older. 
 
 4.  Update, p. 55, under “Policies,” first bullet, third line, delete the phrase “, with the Active Transportation 
Plan,” and add to end of the bullet “, and reviewing pertinent provisions of the Active Transportation Plan.” 
 
 5.  Appendices, p. 8, replace the chart at Figure 9, which shows 2015 data, with the 2019 data, as shown 
on the chart set forth below:  
 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
AMENDMENTS PART B  
Prior to a motion or vote on Councilwoman Townsend’s amendments, she proposed changes to them, based on 
her further research: 

1. Remains the same 
2. a) Remains the same 

b) Change to:  “Evaluate public support for and efficacy of additional means of encouraging senior 
housing at lower cost, including public-private partnerships.” 
c) Withdraw completely 

      3-6: Remains the same 
 
Councilwoman Townsend offered a motion to approve Amendments Part B as currently amended, seconded by 
Councilman O’Connor, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend 
and Smith.  Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Part B of the proposed Amendments by Councilwoman Townsend be approved as re-amended 
as follows: 
 

Part B (Councilwoman Townsend’s Proposed Amendments) 

 
 1.  Update, p. 34, under “Policies,” add “Enact a policy for review and public notice of demolition 
applications.” 
 
  2.  To Supervisor Smith’s “Aging-in-Place” proposed amendment, add the following recommendations: 
  

(a) “Review current codes pertaining to suites in single-family homes for their effectiveness at 
providing suites for elderly family members that promote maximum independence.” 

 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

6 
 

(b) “Evaluate public support for and efficacy of additional means of encouraging senior housing at 
lower cost, including public-private partnerships.” 

 
 3.  Update, p. 36, add a new Action as follows:  “Conduct a town-wide traffic safety assessment to identify 
priority areas and subsequent actions to increase safety.” 
 
 4.  Update, p. 57, under “Policy,” add to the end of the sentence: “, including solar, wind, and geothermal 
energy technologies.” 
 
 5.  Update, p. 57, under “Policy,” add the following new policy:  “Review the existing incentive zoning 
rules to encourage environmentally sustainable building designs, materials, and technologies.” 
 
 6.  Update, p. 57, under “Actions,” add the following new action:  “Review the Design Guidelines to 
ensure that they allow for non-traditional building designs and materials that are more energy efficient and 
environmentally sustainable.” 
   
 
AMENDMENTS PART C  
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger reviewed her proposed Amendments and thereafter made a motion to approve 
them, seconded by Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, 
O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Part C of the proposed Amendments by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger be approved as follows: 
 

Part C (Deputy Supervisor Munzinger’s Proposed Amendments) 

 

 1.  Update, p.4, second paragraph, delete reference to “Appendix B” and change third sentence and 
beginning of fourth sentence to read: “Means of promotion included:” 

 2.  Update, p. 4, first bullet, make “postcard mailing” plural; second bullet, add at the end the words “for 
each meeting;” fifth bullet, make “Story” plural; eighth bullet, make “article” plural; and add an additional bullet 
stating: “Pittsford Messenger, Town newsletter sent to every home.” 

 3.  Update, p.19, remove photograph identified as “Country Village Plaza” (not located in Pittsford). 

 4.  Update, p. 21, change the designation of three “Representative Images” to “Concept Images Only,” 
and remove reference to “KKK Steel,” or alternatively, remove concept images and add photographs of Town of 
Pittsford buildings. 

 5.  Update, p. 25, remove photograph of “Powers Farm Market” (as it is located in Perinton), and, if 
available, add photograph of farm market in Town of Pittsford. 

 6.  Update, p. 40, Action 4, fourth line, insert the word “discernible” between the words “no” and 
“detriment.” 

 7.  Update, p. 56, Action 8, add to end of sentence “and those with disabilities.” 

 8.  Update, p. 57, replace photograph of a “local home with a roof-mounted solar array” with a photograph 
of a home in the Town of Pittsford with a solar array, or alternatively, label the photograph as a concept 
photograph. 

  
 
AMENDMENTS PART D 
Councilman Beckford reviewed his proposed Amendments some discussion among Town Board members 
followed.  Councilwoman Townsend noted that she did not see a clear mechanism to achieve the objectives 
stated in No. 1 and No. 3 of Councilman Beckford’s proposed Amendments.  Following an inquiry from 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

7 
 

Councilman Beckford, Town Attorney clarified that the Comprehensive Plan can be as specific as it wants to be.  
However, what really matters is the Town’s Zoning Law.   
 
Following the discussion, a motion was made by Councilwoman Townsend to sever each individual component of 
the Part D Amendments, to consider each separately, seconded by Councilman Beckford, and voted on by 
members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Part D – Councilman Beckford’s Proposed Amendments be severed into five (5) separate parts, 
as listed 1 – 5 in his proposed amendments, to be considered individually by the Board. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Councilman Beckford stated statistics about demographics and ethnic composition of the population of Pittsford. 
He noted that the purpose of his amendment was to change these demographics.  He noted a history of 
intentional racial segregation in the United States, given effect by zoning laws among other means.  He 
recommended the book The Color of Law, by Richard Rothstein as an excellent resource for understanding this 
phenomenon and as a guide for making changes to overcome it.  The Councilman stated that the purpose of his 
proposal for special efforts for housing affordability for households with incomes from $53,000 to $90,000 was to 
change Pittsford’s ethnic composition and demographics.  He stated that the concept described by his 
amendment is necessary in order to allow young families to move into Pittsford, and children to move back to the 
Town after college.   
 
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger noted that her family is a young family with young children who moved to Pittsford, 
that in her experience there is available housing at affordable prices in the Town, and that the breakdown of 
housing values in Pittsford supports that. 
 
Supervisor Smith recited data. He noted that 26% of all houses in Pittsford are valued at below $199,000, that 
about half of all housing in Pittsford is valued at less than $249,000.  He stated that in the Town outside the 
Village, there are nearly 1,000 apartments and condo units available, and that, within the Village itself, 26% of all 
housing is rental housing.  He continued, that the Town’s current zoning law already in place provides specifically 
for multi-dwelling units, both the B-Residential zoning areas and the C-2 zoning, and that the Town code provides 
for “Planned Unit Developments”  that allow multi dwelling units and which were expressly created for, among 
other things, allowing the use of a variety of housing types and densities.  The Town Code provides also for 
Incentive Zoning and one of the express purposes stated in the Code for Incentive Zoning is to “provide a sound 
mix of housing projects.”  Right now the Town has one homebuilder who’s been in front of the Board with a 
project for apartments by St. John Fisher College, and it’s well known that one builder has been trying to put up 
apartments by the canal in the Village, though that project is solely within the jurisdiction of the Village 
government.   He continued, that in the past 4 or 5 years alone, families with young children moving in is one of 
the major factors in neighborhoods across Pittsford.  It is seen especially in the long-established neighborhoods, 
where the existing housing stock is far less expensive than new construction.  As the older residents downsize, 
young families not only can move in, they’re actually moving in.   
 
The Supervisor noted that the Comprehensive Plan calls for allowing greater density and “cluster” zoning, to allow 
smaller homes to be built closer by each other, including the patio homes that are popular.  This can help a 
builders to offer homes that cost less, and also leaves more green space open.  He noted that the 
Comprehensive Plan also calls specifically for Mixed Use Development that includes apartments, with living units 
above shops and next to them. 
 
Councilman O’Connor discussed what he described as market realities that mean that home builders cannot build 
new homes for sale in Pittsford for less than about $375,000 unless the builder would be willing to build houses to 
sell at a loss.  The underlying cost of land in Pittsford is the driving force, because of the demand caused by 
people wanting to move here.  Looking at existing housing stock, he considered the 26% of housing in Town 
valued at less than $199,000.  He demonstrated that, for a house priced within that range, for $180,000, at the 
current mortgage rate of 3.75%, with a 10% down payment and factoring in all applicable taxes, mortgage 
insurance and home insurance, the monthly payment would be $1,545 per month, or $18,546 per year.  He 
continued that, using generally accepted rules-of-thumb about housing cost in relation to gross income, whether a 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

8 
 

third of income or one- fourth of income, such a house is well within the financial ability of a family within the 
income range specified in Councilman Beckford’s amendment.     
 
Supervisor Smith said that the information about home values and pricing out a mortgage payment, discussed 
earlier in this meeting, would have come out in the Comprehensive Planning process.  That was a public process 
that involved more than 4 years of careful and deliberate study and public scrutiny and public participation.  The 
Town Attorney intervened to say it had been closer to 5 years.  The Supervisor continued that all of the other 
proposed amendments seek to clarify or add detail to provisions already in the Comprehensive Plan that went 
through that public review.  Councilman Beckford’s amendment is something totally new, out of the blue.  Other 
than a very few comments at the last of the public workshops not sufficient to suggest public support, the concept 
had never been brought up at any stage of the public planning process over 5 years.  No one brought it up at 
either of the two public hearings that the Board held last month.  To bring it up now, after having had 5 years of 
opportunity to do so, bypasses the entire public process. 
 
By bypassing the public process, he continued, this amendment was subject to no review by the Comprehensive 
Plan citizens committee, or by the Town’s consultants or, most importantly, by the public.  The Supervisor recalled 
the observation of the Comprehensive Plan consultant at the beginning of her presentation at the public hearings 
that a comprehensive plan is supposed to represent the vision and choices of the community.  He stated that is 
very different from imposing on the community something never brought up for their consideration in the planning 
process.   
 
The Supervisor noted that Town held off on finalizing the Comprehensive Plan until after the Community Survey, 
because the Town Board said it would consider results of the survey in finalizing the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
Survey showed strong public support for ways of enabling builders to be able to offer housing desired by seniors 
at lower price points, but not anything beyond that.  He observed that we need to respect both what our residents 
have said, and respect the Town Board’s own commitment to take into account the results of the Survey.   
 
He noted that the Comprehensive Plan includes strengthening two things important to Pittsford:  historic 
preservation and preserving more open space, and historic preservation and preserving open space both have 
the effect of not just supporting the values of all homes in a community, but increasing them.   
 
 
AMENDMENT PART D – NO. 1:  FAILED 
Following discussion, Councilman Beckford offered a modification to No. 1 of his amendments, requesting that it 
read as follows: 
 
(additional modifications in italics) 
 1.  Update, p. 34, Action 3, add to the end:  “Allow for socioeconomic diversification (suited for annual 
income levels of $53,000 - $93,000) to consider providing incentives to developers to allow for socio-economic 
diversity. 
 
Councilman Beckford thereby made a motion to approve #1 of his amendment, seconded by Councilwoman 
Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford and Townsend.  Nays:  Munzinger, O’Connor 
and Smith.  The motion failed. 
 
 
AMENDMENT PART D – NO. 2:  FAILED 
Councilman Beckford requested the modification to No. 2 of his amendments to read as follows: 
(see additional modification in italics) 
 
2.  Update, p. 36, change point 15 to read: “Consider providing incentives to developers to develop more 
affordable homes (suited for annual income levels of $53,000 - $93,000), home types, and prices within each 
development project; i.e., apartments, condominiums, town homes, and patio homes.” 
 
Councilman Beckford then made a motion to approve No. 2 of his amendments.  No member of the Town Board 
seconded the motion, which consequently failed.   
 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

9 
 

AMENDMENT PART D – NO. 3, AS PROPOSED APPROVED 
Councilman Beckford then made a motion to approve No. 3 of his amendments, seconded by Supervisor Smith, 
and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  
none. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that No. 3, of Amendments Part D, proposed by Councilman Beckford be approved as follows: 
 

Part D (Councilman Beckford’s Proposed Amendment) 

 
 1.  Update, p. 36, change point 14 to read: “Provide neighborhood amenities like Grills, Playgrounds and 
Pavilions (in new and existing neighborhoods) where possible and supported by the neighborhood, to bring 
communities together and provide social connectedness among residents.” 
 
 
AMENDMENT PART D – NO. 4, AS RE-AMENDED:  FAILED 
Councilman Beckford requested the modification to No. 4 of his amendments to read as follows: 
(see additional modifications in italics below) 
 
 4.  Update, following p. 36, add additional page to read as follows: 
 
 Three Generations Program  
National trends show a desire for neighborhoods to reflect a level of diversification in ages, incomes and ethnic 
groups. Pittsford average household income is 2X of the surrounding areas. In the last 10 years, most housing 
stock added had entry points of well over $300K, making it impossible for our seniors to downsize and young 
families to move to Pittsford.  
PROBLEM TODAY: (1) Seniors unable to downsize to affordable apartments, townhomes or condos are leaving 
Pittsford; moving to neighboring towns who have more affordable housing stock. (2) Young people and young 
families making $53K – $93K are unable to find enough housing stock they can afford.  
The (per my suggested amendment) policy recommendations for residential development in this Comprehensive 
Plan (p. 34) contemplate diversification of housing stock to accommodate shifting needs. Many Pittsford residents 
have expressed interest in more affordable housing options that would allow their kids to live here after college 
and to allow seniors to downsize. This suggest we encourage and incentivize developers to provide a broader 
range of price points than may be available currently.  
The Plan’s recommended actions regarding residential development specifically include (p.36) considering (per 
my suggested amendment) incentives for developers to provide more affordable homes (suited for incomes levels 
$53K – $93K), home types and prices within each development project; i.e. apartment, condo, town homes and 
patio homes. 
 
Thereafter, Councilman Beckford made a motion to approve No. 4 of his proposed amendments.  No member of 
the Town Board seconded the motion, which consequently failed.   
 
 
AMENDMENT PART D – NO. 5, AS RE-AMENDED:  FAILED 
Councilman Beckford offered a modification to No. 5 of his amendments, requesting that it read as follows: 
(additional modifications in italics) 
 

5.  Update, p. 20, add to the list of “Potential Future Land Uses” the word “Condominiums”. 

 
Councilman Beckford then offered a motion to approve No. 5 of his proposed amendments, seconded by 
Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford and Townsend.  Nays:  
Munzinger, O’Connor and Smith.  The motion failed. 
 
 
AMENDMENT PART E – PROPOSED BY COUNCILMAN O’CONNOR APPROVED 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

10 
 

Councilman O’Connor reviewed his one proposed Amendment and thereafter made a motion to approve, 
seconded by Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, 
O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Part E of the proposed Amendment by Councilman O’Connor be approved as follows: 
 

Part E (Councilman O’Connor’s Proposed Amendment) 
 
 1.  Update, p. 57, Goal #3, “Healthy Living,” fourth line, insert the phrase “and resiliency” after the word 
“sustainability.” 
 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE SEQRA APPROVED 
Supervisor Smith offered a motion that a Negative Declaration of environmental significance be made, seconded 
by Councilwoman Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, 
Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was carried as follows: 
WHEREAS, through a series of meetings with residents and business owners of the area, the Town, with 
assistance from its Town Planner, Bergman Associates, developed a draft Update to the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan, with Appendices, which outlines a shared vision of the future for the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, following receipt and review of the draft Update and Appendices to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, 
a public hearing was held on the 3rd day of September, 2019 and continued through the 17th day of September, 
2019, at which time it was closed, to review the proposed changes to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, receive 
public comments and determine whether such changes should be adopted by the Town Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the closure of the public hearing, the Town published proposed amendments to the Update 
and Appendices, which amendments were duly considered by the Town Board at its meeting on October 1, 2019; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, the proposed action being considered is adoption of the Update as amended by the votes taken this 
evening with Appendices to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan which identifies the important attributes and 
components that define the community, provides a vision for the future, and focuses on the current and long-
range protection, enhancement and development of the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, updating the Comprehensive Plan has consisted of the three following major analyses: 1) 
understanding existing conditions in the Town; 2) defining and articulating the Town’s goals and vision for the 
future; and 3) determining the means to accomplish those goals and give life to that vision; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board obtained public input through various outreach efforts, and consulted with local 
officials, departments and committees, representatives of the Town Planning Board, and other municipal 
representatives, businesses and property owners, together with the multi-meeting Public Hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board is responsible for preparation and adoption of the amendments to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan, pursuant to Town Law § 272-a; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed action of adopting the proposed amendment to the Town Comprehensive Plan is a 
Type I SEQRA action pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 617.4(b)(1); and 
 
WHEREAS, a Full Environmental Assessment Form has been prepared for the proposed action; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

11 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board finds that based upon the information included in the Full Environmental 
Assessment Form  and the criteria contained in 6 NYCRR § 617.7, the Town Board is the Lead Agency for 
SEQRA review of the proposed action; and be it further  
 
RESOLVED, that copies of the Comprehensive Plan materials were provided to the Interested Agencies and the 
public during the review process for the proposed Update to Town’s Comprehensive Plan; and be it further  
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board, having reviewed the full environmental assessment form, and the Town Board 
having taken a “hard look” at potential adverse environmental impacts of the proposed Update to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan, with Appendices and amendments, and having given this matter due deliberation and 
consideration, finds that the proposed Update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, with Appendices and 
amendments, will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby issues a Negative Declaration for the project. 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE APPROVED AS AMENDED 
Following the approval of the SEQRA Resolution, Supervisor Smith offered a Resolution to approve the 
Comprehensive Plan Update as Amended, seconded by Councilman O’Connor, and voted on by members as 
follows:  Ayes:  Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  Beckford. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
WHEREAS, through a series of meetings with residents and business owners of the area and other community 
outreach efforts, the Town, with assistance from its Town Planner, Bergmann Associates, developed a draft 
Update, with Appendices, to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, which outlines a shared vision of the future for the 
Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed action being considered is adoption of an Update, with Appendices, to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan which identifies the important attributes and components that define the community, 
provides a vision for the future, and focuses on the current and long-range protection, enhancement and 
development of the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board obtained public input through various outreach efforts, and consulted with local 
officials, departments and committees, representatives of the Town Planning Board, and other municipal 
representatives, businesses and property owners, together with a multi-meeting Public Hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board is responsible for preparation and adoption of the amendments to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan, pursuant to Town Law § 272-a; and 
 
WHEREAS, updating the Comprehensive Plan has consisted of the three following major analyses: 1) 
understanding existing conditions in the Town; 2) defining and articulating the Town’s goals and vision for the 
future; and 3) determining the means to accomplish those goals and give life to that vision; and  
 
WHEREAS, there was duly published in a newspaper previously designated as an official newspaper for 
publication of public notices, and posted upon the bulletin board maintained by the Town Clerk pursuant to § 
30(6) of the Town Law, a notice of public hearing to the effect that the Town Board would hold a public hearing on 
3rd day of September and the 17th day of September, 2019 on the proposed Update to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the said public hearing was duly held on the 3rd day of September, 2019 and continued through the 
17th day of September, 2019, at which time it was closed, and all persons present were given an opportunity to 
be heard, whether speaking in favor of or against the adoption of the proposed Update to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the closure of the public hearing, the Town published proposed amendments to the Update 
and Appendices, which amendments were duly considered by the Town Board at its meeting on October 1, 2019; 
and 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

12 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Board has determined that proposed Update, with Appendices and amendments, to the 
Town’s Comprehensive Plan is a Type I action pursuant to 6 NYCRR Part 617 of the State Environmental Quality 
Review Act, and has previously determined that the proposed action will not have a significant adverse impact on 
the environment; and   
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the closing of said public hearing, and after all persons interested had been heard, the 
Town Board considered the adoption of the Update, with Appendices, to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, along 
with amendments to the Update that were proposed by the Town Board and made available to the public; and  
 
WHEREAS, it was the decision of the Town Board that the proposed Update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, 
with Appendices and the amendments accepted by the Town Board, should be adopted. 
 
NOW, on a motion duly made and seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED, that the proposed Update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, with Appendices and the 
amendments accepted by the Town Board, be adopted by the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, New York.  
 
 
 
 
RECESS 
Supervisor Smith called for a brief Recess at 9:00 P.M.  The Town Board reconvened and continued with the 
meeting at 9:05 P.M. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No public comments were offered. 
 
 
BUDGET TRANSFERS APPROVED 
A motion to approve the proposed Budget Transfer for building repairs and updates at Kings Bend Park lodges 
was offered by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, seconded by Councilman Beckford, and voted on by members as 
follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that $16,350.00 be transferred from 1.9950.9000.1.1 (WT – Transfer to Capital) to 
1.2620.2007.10.19 (Bldg. Maint. – Building Improvements) for building repairs and updates at the Kings Bend 
Park lodges. 
 
 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No public comments were offered. 
 
 
NEW YORK STATE LOCAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM STANDARD WORK DAY AND 
REPORTING RESOLUTION APPROVED 
A motion to approve the Standard Work Day and Reporting Resolution for Elected Official and Town Justice, John 
E. Bernacki, Jr., was offered by Councilwoman Townsend, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted 
on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith. 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

13 
 

The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that based on the Recertification of the Record of Activities for Town Justice John E. Bernacki, Jr., 
the NYS Retirement will be credited for service time worked as follows: 
 
Name   Title   Term     Days/Month 
John E. Bernacki, Jr. Town Justice  01/01/2018-12/31/2021   14.93 
 

 
 
HIRING AND STATUS/SALARY CHANGES APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the recommended hiring and status and/or salary change was offered by Councilman 
O’Connor, seconded by Councilman Beckford, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, 
Munzinger, O’Connor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  None. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board approve the following persons are approved for new hires: 
 
Name    Dept       Position     Rate   Date of Hire 

Meghan Brooks Rec      Asst II – Aquatics Instructor Asst PT $12.00  09/23/2019  

Wonje (Jay) Han Rec      Asst I – counselor PT   $11.10  09/25/2019 

Lindsay Layer  Rec      Asst I – Child Watch PT   $11.10  09/27/2019 

Thomas Joerger Rec      Asst I – counselor PT   $11.10  09/30/2019 

 
 
And, be it further 
RESOLVED, that the recommended status and/or salary change for the following employees are approved: 



Minutes of the Town Board for October 1, 2019 
 

14 
 

 

Name   Position  Reason for Change     Rate      Effective Date 

Elijah Fleming  Town Courier PT Replacing Resignation $13.50      09/23/2019 

Kathleen Leonard Sr Office Clerk FT  Promotion for Civil Service $19.46      09/23/2019 

Richard Surowiec Rec Asst II PT  Promotion from Rec Asst I    $12.00      10/02/2019 

 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Councilman Beckford spoke with regard and respect for the process, but was deeply disappointed in the outcome, 
noting that the Comprehensive Plan Update reflects racism and segregation.  He stated that he had hopes to 
change the direction of the Town and believes that this change is necessary. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Cathy Koshycar, spoke, noting that she respects the work completed on the Comprehensive Plan Update, but felt 
it was unfair that some people could not enter the room once the Fire Marshall declared it had reached capacity, 
and they should have a chance to speak, she said the observation that people who supported this had had 5 
years to do so amounted to “scolding.”.   
 
Supervisor Smith noted that the public was given numerous opportunities and invitations to speak, comment and 
participate in the Comprehensive Plan Update over the past 5 years, including the 3 public workshops promoted 
by direct mailings to every home for each, as well as at the two recent Public Hearings on September 3rd and 
September 17th Town Board meetings. That there has been a dedicated website, well publicized, for most of that 
5 year period that has provided for continuous submission of public comment on the Comprehensive Plan.  He 
therefore considered that there was more than ample time for the public to comment and that the Town Board 
also delayed its completion of this Plan until after the Community Survey results were received, intentionally for 
the purpose of having a Comprehensive Plan consistent with the consensus of Pittsford residents.   That delay 
allowed for even more time for public comment. The Plan reflects and is inclusive of the survey results. 
 
Councilman Beckford stated that he had brought up the subject of his amendment before, in his written comment 
at the January 2019 public workshop, but that it was not considered. 
 
Councilwoman Townsend noted that she had been present at the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee 
meetings subsequent to the January Public workshop, and that Councilman Beckford’s written comment at that 
meeting had been considered by the Comprehensive Plan Committee.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business, the Supervisor adjourned the meeting at 9:13 P.M. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Linda M. Dillon 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 

To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel 

Date: October 9, 2019 

Regarding: Town/RIT Agreement for Energy Efficiency Assessment of Town Buildings 
 

For Meeting On: October 15, 2019 
 
 
 The Town and the New York State Pollution Prevention Institute (NYSP2I) at the 
Rochester Institute of Technology (RIT) are interested in entering into an agreement under 
which NYP2I would assess the cost and efficiency of energy consumption in up to three (3) 
selected Town-owned and operated buildings and report its findings. 
 
 The assessment would be done over a three-month period and have the estimated cost 
of $14,169.00, all of which would be paid for by a grant to RIT from the Environmental 
Protection Fund administered by the NYS Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC). 
 
 Submitted herewith are the proposed RIT/NYSP2I Research Agreement and Appendix 
A, Scope of Work, for the project entitled “Town of Pittsford, Energy Efficiency Measures in 
Town Owned and Operated Buildings.” 
 
 Should you wish to enter into this agreement, I suggest the following resolution: 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
  
 I move the Town Board to adopt a resolution authorizing the Supervisor to enter into an 
agreement on behalf of the Town Board with RIT/NYSP2I for assessing energy efficiency in 
certain Town-owned and operated buildings, in accordance with the terms of the written 
agreement submitted herewith. 
 
    
 



MEMORANDUM 

To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel 

Date: October 9, 2019 

Regarding: Town/RIT Agreement for Energy Efficiency Assessment of Town Buildings 
 

For Meeting On: October 16, 2019 
 
 
 The Town and the New York State Pollution Prevention Institute (NYSP2I) at the 
Rochester Institute of Technology (RIT) are interested in entering into an agreement under 
which NYP2I would assess the cost and efficiency of energy consumption in up to three (3) 
selected Town-owned and operated buildings and report its findings. 
 
 The assessment would be done over a three-month period and have the estimated cost 
of $14,169.00, all of which would be paid for by a grant to RIT from the Environmental 
Protection Fund administered by the NYS Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC). 
 
 Submitted herewith are the proposed RIT/NYSP2I Research Agreement and Appendix 
A, Scope of Work, for the project entitled “Town of Pittsford, Energy Efficiency Measures in 
Town Owned and Operated Buildings.” 
 
 Should you wish to enter into this agreement, I suggest the following resolution: 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
  
 I move the Town Board to adopt a resolution authorizing the Supervisor to enter into an 
agreement on behalf of the Town Board with RIT/NYSP2I for assessing energy efficiency in 
certain Town-owned and operated buildings, in accordance with the terms of the written 
agreement submitted herewith. 
 
    
 



Page 1 of 5 
 

Rochester Institute of Technology 
New York State Pollution Prevention Institute 

Research Agreement 
 
This AGREEMENT is entered into as of September 18, 2019 (Effective Date) between Rochester Institute of 
Technology, One Lomb Memorial Drive, Rochester, New York 14623-5604 (“RIT”) on behalf of the New York 
State Pollution Prevention Institute (NYSP2I), and Town of Pittsford, 11 South Main Street, Pittsford, New York 
14534 (“COMPANY”). 
 
COMPANY desires to have RIT undertake a particular project (“Project”) in accordance with the Scope of Work 
described in Appendix A (Scope of Work) dated September 18, 2019. 
 
This Agreement is an agreement between the parties named above for the project entitled, Energy Efficiency 

Measures in Town Owned and Operated Buildings. 
 
Therefore, the parties agree to the terms and conditions as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work – RIT will use its reasonable efforts to perform the Project described in Appendix A (Scope of 

Work).  In performing the Scope of Work, RIT will assign qualified personnel and perform in accordance with 
the skill and diligence expected of an academic research organization with regard to services of a similar 
nature.  
 

2. Period of Performance – This Agreement is valid from the Effective Date through November 29, 2019. This 
Agreement may be extended only by mutual written agreement of both parties. 

 
3. Fiscal Terms –  
 

a) The estimated cost of this Energy Efficiency Measures in Town Owned and Operated Buildings project is 
$14,169.  A grant to RIT from the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) 
will provide the full funding for this project.  The actual cost may vary slightly depending on project 
specifics; however, in no event shall any funding for this project be required from the Town of Pittsford.  
 

b) As part of the project described in Appendix A (Scope of Work), NYSP2I will collect baseline metrics 
which may include environmental, energy, economic, and job retention/growth data.  As a requirement for 
funding under the grant, NYSP2I may contact COMPANY annually for up to three years following the end 
date of this project to collect follow up data related to the project. This data will be compared to the 
baseline data collected at the start of the project to measure and evaluate the effectiveness of the project. 
This information will be included in NYSP2I’s reporting to the New York Department of Environmental 
Conservation. 
 

c) RIT will retain title to any and all equipment or supplies purchased with any funds used under this 
Agreement, or any other RIT funds, subject to any applicable state property requirements. 
 

4. Confidentiality – If the Parties already have an executed non-disclosure agreement that governs the exchange 
of Confidential Information amongst them, then it is hereby incorporated herein. If the Parties do not have such 
a non-disclosure agreement, then either Party (Discloser) may disclose information to the other Party 
(Receiver) under this Agreement that it considers confidential (“Confidential Information”), which may include 
information that is proprietary or confidential to a third party development partner of COMPANY. Confidential 
Information is information that is not generally known to the public that has been identified in writing by the 
Discloser as being proprietary or confidential. Confidential Information disclosed in tangible form shall be 
clearly labeled by the Discloser as “Confidential.” If Confidential Information is disclosed in another 
nontangible form it will only be considered Confidential Information if, at the time of disclosure, Discloser 
identifies it as Confidential and reduces it to writing for the Receiver within ten (10) business days. 

 



Page 2 of 5 
 

Confidential Information shall not include any information that: (i) is already in the possession of Receiver 
without the obligation of confidentiality; (ii) becomes publicly available through no fault of Receiver; (iii) is 
independently developed by Receiver without reliance on the Confidential Information of Discloser; (iv) is 
received without the obligation of confidentiality from a third party with no known duty of confidentiality to 
Discloser; or (v) is required to be disclosed by a government authority, including but not limited to, the Town 
of Pittsford’s compliance with NYS Freedom of Information Law (FOIL) and the NYS Open Meetings law, or 
a court order, provided, however, that Receiver shall promptly notify Discloser of such request or order and 
shall cooperate with Discloser to limit the disclosure of Confidential Information hereunder, as applicable. 

 
Receiver of Confidential Information will maintain the strict confidentiality of the Confidential Information 
with the same degree of care it uses to protect its own confidential information, and in all cases no less than 
reasonable care; and will not disclose Confidential Information to any third parties without the written approval 
of Discloser during the Project and for period of three years from project conclusion. Receiver will use 
reasonable care in the selection of individuals working on the research project and remind them of their 
obligations to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Information. Receiver acquires no rights to 
manufacture, license, or otherwise to use or disclose the Confidential Information except as any expressly 
granted hereunder. 

 
5. Publication – RIT will have the right to release information or to publish any material resulting from the 

Research, except COMPANY’s Confidential Information while under the obligation of confidentiality. 
Nevertheless,   RIT will furnish COMPANY with a copy of any proposed publication thirty (30) days in 
advance of the proposed publication date for review and protection of the potential patentability of any 
intellectual property described therein.  COMPANY may request an additional thirty (30) days’ delay.  Such 
delay will not, however, be imposed on the filing of any student thesis or dissertation.   

 
6. Technical Reports – RIT will furnish COMPANY reports and deliverables as noted in Appendix A and these 

are meant for COMPANY’s internal use only. COMPANY may use the Report(s) externally if used in their 
entirety. Any other use of less than a complete version of the Report(s) is allowed only if the COMPANY first 
obtains the written permission of RIT. 

 
7.   Notices – Any notices given under this Agreement will be in writing and delivered by certified, or registered 

return receipt mail, postage prepaid, or by email or facsimile addressed to the parties as follows:  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE  
For Company:  For Rochester Institute of Technology: 
Matthew J. O’Connor Kimberly Heck 
Town Councilman NYSP2I Business Manager 
Town of Pittsford Rochester Institute of Technology 
11 South Main Street 111 Lomb Memorial Drive 
Pittsford, New York 14534 Rochester, New York 14623-5608 
Telephone:   585-248-6221 Telephone: 585-475-6235 
Fax:                   585-248-6247 Fax:              585-475-5250 
 
TECHNICAL 

 

For Company:  For Rochester Institute of Technology: 
Matthew J. O’Connor Martin Schooping 
Town Councilman Sr. Program Manager 
Town of Pittsford Rochester Institute of Technology 
11 South Main Street 111 Lomb Memorial Drive 
Pittsford, New York 14534 Rochester, New York 14623 
Telephone:   585-248-6221 Telephone: 585-475-6759 
Fax:                   585-248-6247 Fax:  585-475-6610 
E-mail:  moconnor@townofpittsford.org 
 
 

E-mail:  mpsasp@rit.edu 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 

8.   Publicity – Neither party will use the name of the other in connection with any products, promotion, or   
      advertising without the prior written permission of the other party.  
 
9.   Intellectual Property - Intellectual Property shall include all data, software, copyrightable materials, working 

papers, processes, inventions and/or discoveries conceived and/or created in performance of the work funded 
under this contract and any resulting patents, divisions, continuations, or substitutions of such applications and 
all reissues. Intellectual property developed with funding from NYSP2I program is meant to advance the state 
of the art in pollution prevention for the benefit of the citizens of New York State.  On this project, those who 
invented or created the intellectual property in performance of the work funded under this contract will own the 
intellectual property created.  Notwithstanding this provision, for all copyrightable intellectual property created 
on this project that was funded, even if only in part with NYSP2I funding, (excluding software and scholarly 
publications), New York State and the NYSP2I shall have a fully paid up, perpetual, royalty-free, 
nonexclusive, and non-transferable license to use this intellectual property for noncommercial purposes, 
including teaching, training and research.  For all other non-copyrightable intellectual property created on this 
project and that was funded, even if only in part with NYSP2I funding, NYSP2I shall have a fully paid up, 
perpetual, royalty-free, nonexclusive, and non-transferable license to use this intellectual property for 
noncommercial purposes, including teaching, training and research.  

 
Furthermore, due to New York state requirements, the owner of intellectual property created in performance of 
the work funded under this contract will not charge any New York State company for the right to use such 
intellectual property.  However, any inventions, discoveries, intellectual property, and/or copyrights created 
solely with this funding and arising within this project may be licensed to a New York State company, and if 
so, the requirement that there is no-charge to a NYS company any fees for the right to use the created 
intellectual property shall not apply to sublicensing or sales below the initial intellectual property owner to 
licensee transaction. 

 
10.  No Warranty; Indemnification, Limitation of Liability – 

 
a) NEITHER COMPANY NOR RIT MAKES ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, 

AS TO ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE DESIGN, 
USE, ORIGINALITY, INFRINGEMENT, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, OR ACCURACY OF THE PROJECT, OR ANY IDEA, INVENTION(S) OR 
PRODUCT(S), WHETHER TANGIBLE OR INTANGIBLE, CONCEIVED, DISCOVERED, TESTED, 
OR DEVELOPED UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT. 
 

b) COMPANY shall indemnify and hold RIT and its trustees, officers, and employees (Indemnitees) harmless 
from and against any claim, demand, liability, damage, loss, or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and expenses, whether incurred as the result of a third party claim or a claim to enforce this provision) 
incurred by or imposed upon any Indemnitee(s) in connection with any third party claims, suits, or 
judgments arising out of any theory of liability (including tort, warranty, strict liability, or other theory) and 
directly arising or resulting from this Agreement, including without limitation COMPANY’s breach of any 
obligation hereunder, its performance of the research Project, and any use of the research Project or its 
findings. 
 

c) Likewise, RIT shall indemnify and hold COMPANY and its trustees, officers and employees (Indemnitees) 
harmless from and against any claim, demand, liability, damage, loss, or expense (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and expenses, whether incurred as the result of a third party claim or a claim to enforce this 
provision) incurred by or imposed upon any Indemnitee(s) in connection with any third party claims, suits, 
or judgments arising out of any theory of liability (including tort, warranty, strict liability, or other theory) 
and directly arising or resulting from this Agreement, including without limitation RIT’s breach of any 
obligation hereunder, its performance of the research Project. 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

d) In no event will COMPANY or RIT be responsible or liable for any indirect, consequential, special or 
punitive damages by the other Party or any third party regardless of the nature of the claim therefore, and 
even if advised of the possibility of such loss or damage. Either Party’s maximum liability to the other 
party related to this Agreement, including indemnification liability shall not exceed the amounts actually 
paid by COMPANY for the Research described in Appendix A. 
 

11. Export Control – Both parties agree that no technology or technical data received under this agreement shall be 
exported or disclosed to any foreign national, firm or country, including foreign nationals employed by or 
associated with either party, without first complying with the requirements of the International Traffic in Arms 
Regulation (ITAR), the Export Administration Regulation (EAR), and all other applicable export control 
regulations of the United States of America, including obtaining an export license or technical assistance 
agreement, if applicable. 

 
Prior to commencement of this Project, both parties agree to promptly inform the other in writing if they are 
aware of any EAR or ITAR classification of any technology or data that is disclosed to the other Party or to be 
used under this Agreement.  If either Party learns of an export classification by the U.S. or another government 
during the term of this Research, they shall inform the other Party of such findings in writing promptly.   At this 
time neither of the Parties contemplates any part of this Project to involve technology or technical data restricted 
by the export control regulations of the United States. 

12. RIT Policy on Sponsored Programs – In addition to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, all 
externally sponsored activities of RIT are conducted in accordance with its Oversight Policy, a campus-wide 
set of principles governing all publicly and privately sponsored projects at RIT.  The RIT policy states that 
while confidentiality shall be maintained as specified in this Agreement, in all cases this Agreement’s 
existence, the project name, sponsoring organization’s name, funding amount, project duration, and identities 
of RIT project personnel shall be made available to the RIT Community.  RIT faculty, staff, and students who 
are working on a sponsored program are informed of such sponsorship and any unique contractual 
requirements.  The full Oversight Policy for Externally Sponsored Projects is available at 
http://www.rit.edu/academicaffairs/policiesmanual/c010   
 

13. Termination – This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time upon the receipt of thirty (30) 
days’ written notice to the other party.  All costs associated with termination shall be allowable including non-
cancelable commitments incurred prior to receipt of termination notice and all expenses, which have not been 
reimbursed to RIT by COMPANY or NYS DEC.  
 

14. Miscellaneous – 
 

a) Force Majeure-RIT will not be liable for any failure to perform as required by this Agreement, to the extent 
such failure to perform is caused by any reason beyond RIT’s control, or by reason of any of the following 
occurrences: labor disturbances or disputes of any kind, accident, failure of any governmental approval 
required for full performance, civil disorder or commotion, act of aggression, terrorism or threat thereof, 
flood, fire, earthquake, act of God, explosion, shortage or failure of utilities, mechanical breakdown, material 
shortage, disease, or other similar occurrence. 
 

b) Assignment - Neither party will assign its rights or duties under this Agreement to another without the prior 
express written consent of the other party; provided, however, that COMPANY may assign this Agreement 
to a successor in ownership of all or substantially all its business assets who expressly in writing assumes 
COMPANY’s obligations hereunder.   
 

c) Independent Contractor - RIT is an independent contractor and not an agent, joint venturer, or partner of 
COMPANY.  
 

d) Entire Agreement - This Agreement and its appendices contain the entire agreement between the parties.   
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

e) Survival - Sections 4-6, 8-12, and 14 will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any 
reason. 

 
f) Governing Law - This Agreement will be governed and construed pursuant to the laws of the State of New 

York without regard to its conflicts of law principles. 
 
g) Counterparts/Electronic Signature - The parties agree this Agreement may be stored electronically and 

may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which constitute one 
and the same instrument. Each party will execute and promptly deliver to the other party a copy of this 
Agreement bearing an Original Signature. “Original Signature” in this context means a copy of an actual 
signature of a party that is reproduced or transmitted via email of a readable electronic file (PDF preferred), 
photocopy, facsimile, or other process of complete and accurate reproduction and transmission. 

  
This Agreement has been accepted by the duly authorized representatives of the parties as of the dates written below 
who by signing warrant they are authorized to enter this Agreement on behalf of their organizations. 
 
 
TOWN OF PITTSFORD    ROCHESTER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
 
By:        By:         
 (Signature)      (Signature) 
 
Name:       Name:  Randy Jones     
  
Title:        Title: Assoc. Director of Finance & Administration 

 
Date:       Date:       



New York State  
Pollution Prevention Institute 

 
 

Appendix A 
Scope of Work for: 

Town of Pittsford 

Energy Efficiency Measures in Town Owned 
and Operated Buildings 

September 18, 2019 

Prepared for: 
Matthew J. O’Connor 
Town Councilman 
Town of Pittsford 
11 South Main Street 
Pittsford, NY  14534 
Phone: (585) 248-6221 
Fax: (585) 248-6247 
Email: moconnor@townofpittsford.org 
Web: www.townofpittsford.org           
 
Prepared by: 
New York State Pollution Prevention Institute 
Rochester Institute of Technology 
111 Lomb Memorial Drive 
Bldg. 78, Room 2000 
Rochester, New York 14623-5608 
Phone: (585) 475-2512 
Fax: (585) 475-6610 
E-mail: NYSP2I@rit.edu 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
2 

A.  Executive Summary 

The New York State Pollution Prevention Institute (NYSP2I) at Rochester Institute of Technology 

(RIT) proposes to assess the state of energy use in the Town of Pittsford’s (Pittsford) municipal 

buildings and identify potential energy savings measures and approximate payback periods.  

The proposed work includes a review of energy use and cost in Pittsford’s municipal buildings, 

and high level building energy assessments of up to three of the town’s buildings. 

The deliverable for the project will include a final report describing NYSP2I’s findings and potential 

options for energy efficiency measures (EEM). The total estimated cost of this project is $14,169. 

A grant to RIT from the Environmental Protection Fund administered by the New York State 

Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) will provide the full funding for this project, 

subject to availability of funding. This project is expected to be completed in three (3) months. 

 

B.  Background 

The Town of Pittsford, NY is a community of 29,000 residents (2010 Census) located in 

southwestern Monroe County approximately eight miles from the city of Rochester. Established 

in the early 1800s, Pittsford, a 2017 NYSERDA-designated “Clean Energy Community,” continues 

to grow due to its reputation as one of the more attractive Rochester suburbs. 

Pittsford has a long history of sustainability beginning with the 1996 adoption of its GreenPrint 

Plan. In 2017, Pittsford became a “Clean Energy Community” after implementing four high impact 

practices and in doing so won a $50,000 NYSERDA grant to pursue two additional greenhouse 

emission reduction projects. The funds will be used to install a “level 2” electric vehicle charging 

station and a roof mounted solar array to power lodges at King’s Bend Park. Working through the 

Genesee-Finger Lakes Regional Planning Council (GFLRPC), Pittsford requested assistance 

from NYSP2I in the assessment and identification of potential energy efficiency measures (EEM) 

in Pittsford owned and operated buildings.  

 

C.  Statement of Work  

The objectives of this project are to provide high level evaluations of up to three Pittsford’s town 

owned buildings’ energy use and offer potential energy reduction options. To meet these 

objectives, the following tasks will be performed: 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
3 

Task 1. Review Utility Bills 
Task 1.1: Review Portfolio Manager Data 
NYSP2I will review Pittsford’s latest information in EPA’s Portfolio Manager.  

Task 1.2: Review Utility Bills  
NYSP2I will review Pittsford’s utility bills for details about delivery and demand charges and 
interval data, if available. 
 
Pittsford will support Task 1 by checking and correcting, if required, the Portfolio Manager data, 
providing access to their Portfolio Manager account, providing utility bills as requested, and 
informing NYSP2I about recent and planned facility changes that may affect energy use. 
 
Task 2. Select High Opportunity Buildings 
Using utility data and Portfolio Manager information collected in Task 1, NYSP2I will select up to 
three of Pittsford’s town owned and operated buildings for further investigation. Selected buildings 
will be those exhibiting high normalized energy consumption and relatively high energy costs. 

Task 3. Perform High Level Building Energy Assessments 
NYSP2I will perform high level energy assessments of the buildings selected in Task 2. For each 
selected building, NYSP2I will review building details then perform a walkthrough as described 
below. The focus of this task is to identify energy use and cost reduction opportunities. 

Review Building Details 
NYSP2I will meet with Pittsford’s staff to compare each building’s current vs. as-built condition 
and the energy use and building use profiles. This information will be used during the building 
walkthrough. 
 
Building Walkthrough 
During the building walkthrough, NYSP2I will observe and/or measure conditions and metrics 
related to the following: 

• Building Envelope – insulation, walls, roof, windows, doors, utility entrances, etc. 
• Lighting – interior and exterior control schedules, lamp types, lighting levels, etc. 
• Office Equipment  
• Indoor Environmental Conditions 
• HVAC – temperature set-points and schedules, chiller and boiler equipment condition and 

maintenance, equipment sizing, outdoor air reset, plumbing, air distribution, makeup air 
control, economizers, etc. 

• Hot Water 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
4 

• Building use schedule 

Task 4. Prepare and Deliver a Final Report 
NYSP2I will provide Pittsford a report summarizing and documenting the entire project.  The 
report will be presented to Pittsford either in-person or via teleconference. The report will include:  

• An overview of the project process 

• A discussion of the discoveries 

• Suggested Energy Efficiency Measures (EEM) 

• An EEM payback estimate based on very general implementation cost and savings 

estimates 

In support of this project, Town of Pittsford will be responsible for the following: 
• Accommodate site visits as noted above 
• Have a Building Manager or Engineer available during site visits 
• Provide access to mechanical equipment, and air distribution systems 
• Provide access to roof, ceiling and attic spaces, as needed 
• Provide and correct required information in a timely fashion as indicated in Task 1 

 

D.  Project Deliverables 

A final report, as described in Task 4 of Section C, will be provided to Pittsford. The final report is 

intended for Pittsford’s internal use. If Pittsford chooses to use the report externally, the report 

must be used in its entirety. Any external use of less than a complete version of the report is 

allowed only if Pittsford first obtains written permission from RIT.  

 

E.  Project Schedule 

The anticipated time to complete this project is approximately three (3) months from project 

initiation. However, the total duration of the project is dependent upon receipt of information from 

Pittsford and scheduling of site visits in a timely manner. The projected schedule is provided 

below:  

 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
5 

Tentative Project Timeline 

 

 

F.  Additional Information 

Publication – NYSP2I may summarize the non-proprietary results of the project in a case study 

or other publication which may be published on the NYSP2I website and/or other media.  This is 

meant to encourage other companies to adopt identified best practices and further advance the 

benefits of the NYSP2I initiative. Pittsford will be provided the opportunity to review the case study 

prior to release as per the Agreement.  

 

Metrics Collection – As part of the project, NYSP2I will collect baseline metrics, which may 

include environmental, energy, economic, and job retention/growth data. As a requirement for 

funding under the grant, NYSP2I may contact Pittsford annually for up to three (3) years following 

the end date of this project to collect follow up data related to the project.  This data will be 

compared to the baseline data collected at the start of the project to measure and evaluate the 

effectiveness of the project.  This information will be included in NYSP2I’s reporting to the New 

York Department of Environmental Conservation. 

 

G.  Cost 

The estimated cost for NYSP2I to conduct its work for this project as described herein is $14,169. 

A grant to NYSP2I from the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Task 1 - Review Utility Costs

Task 2 - Select High Opportunity Buildings

Task 3 - Perform Energy Assessments

Task 4 - Prepare Final Report and Present Findings

Estimated Schedule (weeks)



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
6 

(NYSDEC) will provide the full amount, subject to availability of funding. It should be noted that 

the project cost does not include any additional work to be undertaken as follow-on projects for 

any work outside of the scope of work as defined herein. 

This project with Pittsford, as outlined in this document, will begin with a fully executed Agreement 

(to be prepared by RIT).   

 

H.  Project Team & Biographies 

For all of its projects, NYSP2I uses the fullest combination of its industrial experience, equipment 

and technology resources and the expertise of in-house professional staff that may be augmented 

by NYSP2I partner university faculty or contracted field experts.  For this project, team members 

will include: 

• Kim Bawden Pollution Prevention Engineer, NYSP2I 

• Allen Luccitti Senior Staff Engineer, CIMS 

• Martin Schooping Senior Project Manager, NYSP2I 

    
Kim Bawden 
Kim Bawden is a Staff Engineer at the NYS Pollution Prevention Institute at RIT, where her 

primary role is to provide technical assistance to industry. Ms. Bawden supports manufacturers 

throughout the supply chain by assessing manufacturing processes for improvement 

opportunities, performing material & energy balances for baseline metric quantification, 

researching and identifying environmentally preferable & cost-effective alternatives, and by 

assisting companies in meeting sustainability certifications/scorecards. 

Ms. Bawden brings eight years of industry experience working in various manufacturing 

engineering capacities for Harris RF Communications and Microwave Data Systems, where her 

focus areas included support for ISO9001 Certification, new product development facilitation into 

manufacturing, design for manufacturability, and supervision of receiving and in-process 

inspections, as well as documentation control. 

Ms. Bawden earned an M.S. in Sustainable Systems from RIT’s Golisano Institute for 

Sustainability. Her thesis research included a life cycle assessment (LCA) of the built 

environment, focusing on energy consumption and carbon emissions impacts.  Ms. Bawden also 

holds a B.S. degree in Industrial Engineering and a M.E. in Engineering Management, both from 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
7 

RIT. She is also a certified LEED Green Associate (GA) and Life Cycle Assessment Certified 

Professional (LCACP). 

Allen Luccitti 

Allen Luccitti is a Senior Staff Engineer at the Center for Integrated Manufacturing Studies at RIT, 

where his engineering skills are a valued resource for several research centers and sustainability 

projects. He is a member of the GIS Life Cycle Assessment team, assisting with ISO 14040 

compliant LCA’s and is a key resource for New York State Pollution Prevention Institute’s 

(NYSP2I) Green Technology Acceleration Center and Sustainable Supply Chain and Technology 

Programs. Mr. Luccitti’s work at RIT has also included application of health monitoring 

hardware/software on various military and commercial vehicles, and analyzing data collected from 

the health monitoring systems. 

Previously Mr. Luccitti worked for QED Technologies as a Manufacturing Engineer, where he was 

responsible for providing support on continuous improvement projects, including design, 

prototype build and testing of sub system components for optics polishing equipment.  Other 

responsibilities included writing technical manuals for new products, creating detailed drawings 

and processing engineering changes. Mr. Luccitti holds a B.S./M.E. in Mechanical Engineering 

from RIT. 

Martin Schooping   
Marty Schooping is a Sr. Project Manager at NYSP2I with a diverse background in many areas 

of engineering and design including automated manufacturing, product development, design for 

six sigma, data analysis, Finite Element Analysis, energy efficiency, measurement, verification 

and noise and vibration control engineering.  Mr. Schooping spent the first 11 years of his 34 year 

career designing automation equipment and tooling for automotive, business machines and 

medical clients. The next 17 years were spent as a consultant in new product development. He 

has contributed to products ranging from nano-technology bio sensors to multi-ton automated 

laundry products including such diverse products as medical oxygen concentrators and boat hulls.  

He has been with RIT and NYSP2I conducting research projects in alternative energy, energy 

efficiency, technical assistance and industrial programs since 2008. He was instrumental in 

developing and instructing a training class in energy cost reductions for building and facility 

managers of small to medium sized industrial buildings. He has also provided instruction in the 

ISO 50001 Energy Management System. Schooping holds an associate’s degree in Mechanical 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
8 

Engineering Technology from Erie Community College and is currently pursuing a B.S. degree in 

Electrical Engineering Technology at RIT.  Mr. Schooping holds several patents relating to 

product designs and innovations. 

Co-op, Graduate and Part-time Students 

Students studying engineering, information technology, imaging science and other disciplines at 

RIT are employed by NYSP2I, bringing fresh perspectives, ideas and enthusiasm to our team.  

RIT is one of the nation’s top comprehensive universities and sets the national standard for 

career-oriented education.  RIT’s extensive experience and resources prepare students to make 

valuable and immediate contributions to NYSP2I project activity.  



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
9 

I. Organization 

New York State Pollution Prevention Institute 
The New York State Pollution Prevention Institute (NYSP2I) is led by Rochester Institute of 

Technology (RIT) and is a partnership between RIT, Clarkson University, Rensselaer Polytechnic 

Institute, Cornell University, SUNY Binghamton and the NYS Manufacturing Extension 

Partnership Centers. 

 

The mission of NYSP2I is to make New York State more sustainable for workers, the public, the 

environment, and the economy through: 

• reductions in toxic chemical use  

• the efficient use of raw materials, energy and water  

• reductions in emissions to the environment and waste generation  

 

NYSP2I is an integrated program of several major elements: 

• technology research, development and diffusion  

• outreach  

• professional training  

• a community grants program  

• academic educational programs 

 

 

 



 

Rochester Institute of Technology / NYS Pollution Prevention Institute 
10 

Golisano Institute for Sustainability (GIS) 
For over 25 years, the Golisano Institute for Sustainability (GIS) has been dedicated to the 

economic imperative of sustainability and the global competitiveness of the manufacturing sector. 

Located on the campus of Rochester Institute of Technology, GIS is a leading industrial 

sustainability research, development, and technology deployment organization.  

GIS consists of a diverse set of academic programs, applied research centers, sponsored 

programs, and initiatives that focus on industrial collaboration to deploy new technologies for more 

efficient and sustainable products and processes. All of our research programs are led by a 

multidisciplinary team of faculty and professional research staff who collaborate with external 

organizations locally, nationally and internationally to create implementable solutions to complex 

sustainability problems.  

Our approach to sustainability is grounded in the scope and practicality of real-world 

manufacturing problems. We have partnered with hundreds of business and government 

sponsors to solve complex technical problems facing manufacturing. Our expertise in pollution 

prevention, design for product life, remanufacturing, product and process efficiency, material and 

process innovation, and smart products and systems combined with our state-of-the-art facilities 

create competitive advantages for companies both large and small.  

With over 100 full-time engineers, technicians, research faculty, and sponsored students; 

approximately 225,000 square feet of state-of-the-art facilities, equipment, testbeds; and multiple 

interdisciplinary research centers – GIS brings the right mix of talent, experience, and capabilities 

to every project.   

Rochester Institute of Technology (RIT) 
As one of the world’s leading technology education and research institutions, RIT is a vibrant, 

connected community that is home to diverse, ambitious, and creative students from more than 

100 countries. The university offers a wide array of academic programs; a diverse, committed, 

and accessible faculty; sophisticated facilities; and a strong emphasis on experiential learning. 

With a significant number of its graduates working in all sectors of manufacturing, RIT has 

developed particular academic expertise in such areas of concern to industry as engineering, 

sustainability, computer science, packaging, biotechnology, quality and applied statistics, 

business and finance, and imaging science. 

 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board 

From: Greg Duane 

Date: October 7, 2019 

Regarding:  Surplus Inventory 
 

For Meeting On: October 15, 2019 

 

 

Be it Resolved, that the following list of equipment be declared 
surplus/junk and be removed from the Town’s Inventory:  
 
 
 
       

 Asset # Year Description Department  Cost  Disposition 

       

 13934 2002 Circulator Fan Hwy $391.85 Junk 

 16395 2007 Chain Saw Hwy $471.95 Junk 

 17172 2011 Level & Case Hwy $154.36 Junk 

 17507 2013 Ford F-350 Dump Truck Hwy $22,330.30 Auction 

 17914 2015 Radar Sign Hwy $2,800.00 Junk 

       

       

       

       

     $26,148.46  

       

 



9/26/19 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget Transfers  
 
 

Be it resolved that the following budget transfers are approved: 
 
 
 
That $4,000.00 be transferred from 1.8540-2005.2.4 (Drainage – Capital Improvement) to 
1.8540.4400.2.4 (Drainage – Contractual Services) to cover the expense associated with the 
Monroe County Stormwater Coalition. 
 

































































































MEMORANDUM 

To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Cheryl Fleming, Personnel Director 

Date: October 3, 2019 

Regarding: Recommendations for Hiring/Personnel Adjustments 
 

For Meeting On: October 15, 2019 
 
1. The following employee(s) are recommended as a new hire based on the recommendation of 

the Functional Coordinator(s) for these areas:  
 

Name     Dept      Position    Rate   Date of Hire 

Carolyn Myers   Rec      Asst I   Counselor PT (Re-Hire) $11.10  10/03/2019 

Melissa Desir-Spinelli  Library      Clerk – Perm PT   $16.89  10/14/2019 

Pamela Thurber  Court      Court Clerk – Perm FT  $30.21  10/15/2019 

Daniel Pulver    Rec      Asst III Comm Cntr Supv PT $12.71  10/16/2019 

Anne Kealy   Rec      Asst III Lifeguard PT (Aquatics) $14.00  10/16/2019 

Victoria Lennarz  Rec      Asst I   Counselor PT  $11.10  10/18/2019 

 

All the proper reviews and background checks have been completed for these candidate(s) and 

have received appropriate sign off by the Town Board representative.  
 

Name     Dept      Position    Rate   Date of Hire 

Carolyn Myers   Rec      Asst I   Counselor PT (Re-Hire) $11.10  10/03/2019 

Melissa Desir-Spinelli  Library      Clerk – Perm PT   $16.89  10/14/2019 

Pamela Thurber  Court      Court Clerk – Perm FT  $30.21  10/15/2019 

Daniel Pulver    Rec      Asst III Comm Cntr Supv PT $12.71  10/16/2019 

Anne Kealy   Rec      Asst III Lifeguard PT (Aquatics) $14.00  10/16/2019 

Victoria Lennarz  Rec      Asst I   Counselor PT  $11.10  10/18/2019 

 

2. The following employee(s) are recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to 

a change in status. 

 

Name   Position  Reason for Change     Rate      Effective Date 

Michael Hook  Laborer  Class B License  $16.22      10/01/2019 

Henry Webb  Lifeguard  Added Position  $14.00      10/12/2019  

James Peterson General Foreman Probation Period Met  $32.14      10/14/2019 

Patricia Dromgoole Sr. Court Clerk Training New Hire  $32.96      10/15/2019 

James Byrne  Librarian Trainee Replacement – Perm PT $19.46      10/23/2019 

 

Should the Board approve the above recommendations and personnel adjustments, the following 

resolution is being proposed, RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the status and salary 

changes for the following employee(s): 

 

Name   Position  Reason for Change     Rate      Effective Date 

Michael Hook  Laborer  Class B License  $16.22      10/01/2019 

Henry Webb  Lifeguard  Added Position  $14.00      10/12/2019  

James Peterson General Foreman Probation Period Met  $32.14      10/14/2019 

Patricia Dromgoole Sr. Court Clerk Training New Hire  $32.96      10/15/2019 

James Byrne  Librarian Trainee Replacement – Perm PT $19.46      10/23/2019 

 



MEMORANDUM 

To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: October 11, 2019 

Regarding: Training - Pavement Design and Reinforcing Grids 
 

For Meeting On: October 15, 2019 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 I would like to send our Town Engineer, Rob Fromberger to the Pavement Design and 
Reinforcing Grids Seminar sponsored by Tensar that is to be held on Tuesday, October 22, 
2019.  The cost to attend the session is $60 and is budgeted for.  Please see the attached 
training notice for your reference. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 


	01 Agenda 10-15-19
	01a Autism Friendly Community memo
	01b  Autism Council
	02   2020 Budget Presentation-10-15-19
	02a 10 01 19 T Bd min
	03 RitTown Board Memo
	03 Town Board Memo
	03a Pittsford_Energy Efficiency Measures in Town Owned and Operated Bldgs_Agreement (Final Clean) 10.3.19
	04 Oct 15th surplus list
	04a October 15th Transfers
	04b Accounts Payable Listing
	04c Expense Report
	04d Revenue Report
	05 Hiring Resolution
	05a Training - Pavement Design and Reinforcing Grids



